RFP #22-70641: Rental Vehicles Program and Related Services
Attachment F: Technical Proposal Template
Indiana Department of Administration (IDOA)

Instructions: 
Request for Proposal (RFP) #22-70641 is a solicitation by the State of Indiana in which organizations are invited to compete for a contract among other respondents in a formal evaluation process.  Please be aware that the evaluation of your organization’s proposal will be completed by a team of State of Indiana employees and your organization’s score will be reflective of that evaluation.  Therefore, a competitive proposal will thoroughly answer the questions listed.  The Respondent is expected to provide the complete details of its proposed operations, processes, and staffing for the scope of work detailed in the RFP document.
 
Please review the requirements in RFP Section 1.4, Attachment F1 Minimum Requirements, Attachment F2 Vehicle Requirements, and Attachment F3 Required Service Locations.  Please describe your relevant experience and explain how you propose to perform the work detailed in this attachment and the RFP.  For all areas in which subcontractors will be performing a portion of the work, clearly describe their roles and responsibilities, related qualifications, and experience, and how you will maintain oversight of the subcontractors’ activities. 
 
Please use the yellow shaded fields to indicate your answers to the following questions.  The yellow fields will automatically expand to accommodate content.  Every attempt should be made to preserve the original format of this form.  A completed Technical Proposal is a requirement for proposal submission.  Failure to complete and submit this form may impact your proposal’s responsiveness.  Diagrams, certificates, graphics, and other exhibits should be referenced within the relevant answer field and included as legible attachments.  Please complete Attachments F1, F2, and F3 as a part of your Technical Proposal. 


1. Overview

1.1 [bookmark: _Hlk96469019]Please confirm your understanding of the State’s terms, definitions, and abbreviations.

	



1.2 Please provide and define any additional terms and abbreviations you will use in your response to this RFP.

	



1.3 Please provide a high-level introduction to your rental vehicle program.

	



2. [bookmark: _Hlk50638091]Rental Vehicle Requirements and Restrictions

2.1 Please describe how you will ensure that all vehicles rented under your program will meet the requirements laid out in Attachment F2 Vehicle Requirements.

	



2.2 Please describe how you will ensure availability of the State’ rental vehicle classes, including how you will meet the State’s expectations for emergency availability laid out in Section 1.4.3.3 of the RFP.

	



2.3 Please provide examples from your vehicle rental program of each of the State’s rental vehicle classes.

	



2.4 Please describe which rental vehicle classes offer Hybrid Electric Vehicles (HEVs), Plug-In Hybrid Electric Vehicles (PHEVs), Battery Electric Vehicles (BEVs), Fuel Cell Electric Vehicles (FCEVs), and Zero Emission Vehicles (ZEVs) and the State’s options for reserving vehicles of these types.

	



2.5 Please describe how you will ensure that all vehicles rented under your program will conform to all Federal and State Safety Standards and Regulations.

	



3. Customer Service and Account Management

3.1 Please describe in detail your company’s proposed account management team structure including names, contact information, resumes where possible, and services each individual or group will perform.  Please include who will be primary points of contact and how you will ensure that these points of contacts are familiar with State rental vehicle procedures.

	



3.2 Please describe your company’s plan to provide the State of Indiana and all the participating agencies, schools, and governmental bodies with a coordinated and consistent customer service program. 
	



3.3 Please describe the type of contract specific information that is retrievable by a member of customer service (e.g., reservation status, reservation information, contracted rental rate, location hours, etc.)

	



3.4 Please describe your company's standard process for problem resolution and escalation, including standard response times, for all program issues including mobile application or website issues.

	



3.5 Please describe your plan to ensure the continuity of the Account Management team if a member should depart.

	



3.6 Please describe your Account Management methodology during implementation and transition and post-transition/implementation.  Please include details such as meeting cadence, attendees, information provided during meetings, etc.

	



3.7 Please define and describe your customer service quality assurance program, including details on internal metrics. 

	



3.8 Please describe your methods to collect customer feedback and measure customer satisfaction.  Please provide any examples of such methods.
	



3.9 Please describe your internal communication process with the staff at service locations and franchises throughout Indiana and how you will resolve any communication issues between the State and service locations.
	



4. [bookmark: _Hlk96469095]Reporting

4.1 Please confirm your ability to provide detailed reports that contain at least the fields provided in Section 1.4.5 of the RFP.

	



4.2 What are the standard reports that your company provides to your customers?  Please provide a list of your company's standard reports, including examples, as an exhibit to your RFP response.  Please note which reports are available online.

	



4.3 Please detail your company’s customized and ad hoc reporting capabilities, including how long the State will wait to receive new requests for information.  

	



4.4 Does your company provide online Account Management Services that enables the State Vendor Management team to monitor activity?  If so, please provide a list of all functions of online capabilities, including reporting, and their cost to the State. Please note that all functions listed in the RFP will be at no additional cost to the State.

	



5. Reservations, Pickups, Returns, and Cancellations

5.1 Please describe how your proposed solution meets the minimum functionality of the online reservation system as outlined in Section 1.4.6 of the RFP.  Please include an example of how a reservation can be made, viewed, and modified/cancelled.  Pictures and diagrams may be included. 

	



5.2 Please describe the availability and functionality of a mobile application, if applicable.

	



5.3 Please describe additional capabilities of your online reservation system, including the ability of the solution to integrate with the State’s PeopleSoft system. 

	



5.4 Please describe your capability to provide technical assistance for online-reservation related matters and availability of additional support tools (i.e., web based, online help manuals, etc.).

	



5.5 Please confirm your understanding of the State’s expectations for pickups, returns, and cancellations.  Please describe how you will ensure that these expectations will be met for the life of the contract.

	



5.6 Please describe your program’s options for contactless pickup and drop-off.  Please include descriptions of the security features used to facilitate contactless pickup and drop-of, such as cameras or security personnel.

	



5.7 Please describe your program’s options for after-hours returns, including staffing and monitoring. Please complete Attachment I Authorized Rental Location Form with the requested location-specific information.

	



5.8 Please describe the options for payment of tolls.  For each option, please describe the scenario (i.e. a reservation along multiple portions of the I-95 corridor) in which that option would be most beneficial to the State.

	



6. Damage, Loss, and Repair

6.1 Please describe the process for notifying the State of any damage or loss of a vehicle rented under your program.

	



6.2 Please describe your ability to replace damaged or lost vehicles with a different vehicle. 

	



6.3 Please describe your pre-rental and post-rental inspection processes, including all specific criteria.

	



7. Liability and Insurance

7.1 Please describe which liability insurance option (as described in RFP Section 1.4.9) you will offer the State and the rationale for offering.

	



7.2 Please describe the insurance offerings available to Authorized Users who rent vehicles for personal use.

	



8. Billing and Invoicing

8.1 Please confirm your understanding of the State’s billing and payment requirements as described in Section 1.4.10.1 of the RFP. 

	



8.2 Please confirm your understanding of the State’s invoicing requirements as described in Section 1.4.10.2 of the RFP.  Please provide example invoices.

	



8.3 Please describe what procedures are available to modify receipts, bills, or invoices, including manual corrections, and under what circumstance these procedures will be available.

	



9. Roadside Assistance and Service Locations

9.1 Please describe how you will ensure that your proposed program will meet the requirements laid out in Attachment F3 Required Service Locations.

	



9.2 Please provide a list of all service locations within the State of Indiana, including addresses and hours.  Please specify which locations offer the return of vehicles outside of normal business hours.

	



9.3 Please provide a list of all airport service locations in North America.

	



9.4 Please describe your roadside assistance and emergency response programs and how you will inform Authorized Users of the programs’ policies and procedures.

	



10. Authorized User and Driver Responsibilities

10.1 Please confirm your acceptance and understanding of who the State considers an Authorized User.

	



10.2 Please describe how you will confirm that an individual making a reservation under this program is an Authorized User.

	



10.3 Please describe your process for assigning account numbers to business units and individuals and how you will verify and update account numbers during the life of the contract.

	



10.4 Please describe the process for adding and removing individuals from a “do not rent” (or similar) list and how you will work with the State to ensure that such a list will not interfere with State business.

	



10.5 Please provide your standard Rental Agreement and the Rental Agreement for programs like the State’s (if applicable).

	



11. Implementation and Transition

11.1 Please describe your proposed transition and implementation plan, including timing, major milestones, anticipated Respondent staffing and level of effort, and anticipated State staffing and level of effort.

	



11.2 Please describe how you will develop a training plan for State staff, including relevant examples if applicable.

	



11.3 In addition to a standard training plan, please describe how you will develop custom training plans and training materials.

	



11.4 Please describe information regarding each car class available to Authorized Users making a reservation, such as pictures and specifications.  Please provide a Rental Guide if available.  

	



11.5 Please describe your experience with implementation of your rental vehicle program with similar clients to the State of Indiana. 

	



11.6 Please describe any potential risks or challenges in implementing your rental vehicle program with the State.  Please describe your risk and challenge mitigation efforts.
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